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1813 Enclosure Award extract 

 
 

 Event Owner Comment/source 

1798  Thomas Armborough 

(1768-1812) and son 

John (d. 1796) 

Also owned Mulberry Court 1772-1789 

1813 Enclosure As above  

1841 Census 

1841 

Elizabeth 

Armborough (wife of 

John??) aged 70 

 

1843 Sale see 

below 

Thomas Wace  Joseph Cooper (info from 1845 Poor Rate 

survey) 

1850  Rev Richard Henry 

Wace (bequeathed by 

uncle Thomas Wace) 

 

1894 Sale for 

£1355 

William Boughton (d. 

1920) of 5 Broadway, 

Hammersmith 

Tenant Charles Shepherd, both names 

confirmed by 1910 Valuation Survey, which 

shows that it farmed 37 acres 

1922 Sale for 

£1900 

Charles Shepherd He also bought a large area of land which had 

been part of Crown Farm, owned by the late A 

W Hall. 

1927 Sale Magdalen College All land other than part to Gibbard, 

presumably the house, and the frontage to 

Crown Road on which he built 4 pairs of 

detached houses, one each for his four sons. 

1927 Sale Edward Gibbard He was a horse dealer and had a butcher’s shop 

in Oxford market, see text below Figure 2 

1945 Sale Bullingdon RDC 8-0-32 acres 

1949 Sale May Jefferies The Gibbard holding less the Bullingdon RDC 

sale 

1950 Sale John Ernest 

Freeborne 

Butcher, who also had a shop 

1955 Sale Fred and Moira 

Anson 

Plots 119 and part 53 

1955 Part sale Marjorie Baylis Bought house in 1964 

1960 Sale Builder of Anson 

Close 

Plots 119 and part 53 

 



 
 

 
 

The current house, Ambrose Farm, remains on Plot 116 of some 0.86 acres. 


